
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Health Scrutiny Panel
27 April 2017

Time 1.30 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny

Venue Committee Room 3 - Civic Centre, St Peter's Square, Wolverhampton WV1 1SH

Membership
Chair Cllr Jasbir Jaspal (Lab)
Vice-chair Cllr Wendy Thompson (Con)

Labour Conservative

Cllr Craig Collingswood
Cllr Peter O'Neill
Cllr Phil Page
Cllr Judith Rowley
Cllr Stephen Simkins
Cllr Martin Waite

Cllr Arun Photay

Quorum for this meeting is two Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the democratic support team:

Contact Earl Piggott-Smith
Tel/Email Tel: 01902 551251 or earl.piggott-smith@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Address Democratic Support, Civic Centre, 2nd floor, St Peter’s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
Email democratic.support@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Tel 01902 555043

Please take note of the protocol for filming and recording of, and use of social media in, meetings, copies 
of which are displayed in the meeting room.

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public.

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:democratic.support@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS

1 Declarations of Interest 

2 Apologies 

3 Minutes of previous meeting (2 March 2017) (Pages 3 - 8)
[To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.]

4 Matters Arising 
[To consider any matters arising from the minutes.]

DISCUSSION ITEMS

5 Oral Health of Children in Wolverhampton (Pages 9 - 48)
[Katie Spence, Consultant in Public Health, to give a presentation and briefing 
paper on the standard of oral health of children in Wolverhampton, the inequalities 
that exist, and what is being done to address this issue]

6 Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust  - hospital infection rates 2016/17 
[Jeremy Vanes, Chairman, The Royal Wolverhampton NHS Hospital Trust to 
present report on annual hospital infection rates]

7 Access to GP Surgeries 
[Steven Marshall, Director of Strategy & Transformation, Wolverhampton CCG, to 
present report]

8 Towards an Active City – a physical activity framework (Pages 49 - 56)
[Richard Welch, Head of Healthier Place, and Andrea  Fieldhouse, Active People 
and Places Manager, to present report]

INFORMATION ITEMS

9 Health and Wellbeing Board - Draft Minutes (29.3.17) (Pages 57 - 62)
[Please note that these are draft minutes and will be presented to Health and 
Wellbeing Board meeting on 28.6.17 for review and approval.]

10 Informal Joint Meeting with Staffordshire County Council  and City of 
Wolverhampton Council and Royal Wolverhampton NHS Hospital Trust - 13 
February 2017 (Pages 63 - 68)



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Health Scrutiny Panel
Minutes - 2 March 2017

Attendance

Members of the Health Scrutiny Panel
Cllr Craig Collingswood
Cllr Jasbir Jaspal (Chair)
Cllr Peter O'Neill
Cllr Wendy Thompson (Vice Chair)

In Attendance
Sue Green
Jeff Blankley

Katie Jobling
Helen Brownk
Andrea Smith

Deputy Director of Nursing & Quality, WMAS
Chair of the Wolverhampton Local 
Pharmaceutical Committee
Beacon Centre for the Blind
Beacon Centre for the Blind
Wolverhampton CCG

Employees
Julia Cleary Systems and Scrutiny Manager
Ros Jervis Service Director - Public Health and Wellbeing
Neeraj Malhotra Consultant in Public Health
Katie Spence Consultant in Public Health

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

1 Apologies
Apologies were received from Cllr Page, Cllr Rowley, Cllr Simkins and Cllr Photay.

2 Declarations of Interest
Cllr Waite declared an interest in item 8 on the agenda as he was employed by the 
Ambulance Service.

3 Minutes of previous meeting
Resolved: That the minutes of the meetings held on 12 January 2017 and 25 
January 2017 be agreed as correct records of the meetings. 

4 Matters Arising
The Chair drew the Panels attention to the joint meeting that had been held with the 
Staffordshire Healthy Select Committee on 13 February 2017 and confirmed that a 
letter had subsequently been written to the Secretary of State requesting clarity as to 
the future of various health establishments in the area.

The Panel also considered the start time of the meeting and agreed that meetings of 
the Health Scrutiny Panel commence at 1.30 pm from the next meeting. 

Page 3

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

The Chair also confirmed that the minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board would 
be brought to future meetings of the Panel.

Resolved: That meetings of the Health Scrutiny Panel commence at 1.30 pm from 
the next meeting. 

5 Update on Funding Reductions to Community Pharmacies
The Director for Public Health introduced a report to update and identify any further 
opportunities to support community pharmacy services across Wolverhampton. The 
Director for Public Health introduced Katie Spence – Consultant in Public Health and 
Jeff Blankley – Chair of the Wolverhampton Local Pharmaceutical Committee to the 
Panel.

Mr Blankley provided a presentation to the Panel.

There were 74 community pharmacies in Wolverhampton providing a range of 
services, from dispensing medicines and self-care support through to public health 
promotion.  NHS England commissioned community pharmacies, with CCGs, public 
health departments and others commissioning specific additional services.

In December 2015, the government announced that funding for community pharmacy 
in 2016/17 would be reduced by £170 million. The cut was a reduction of more than 
6% in cash terms.

It had been expected that the reduction would be implemented in October 2016, 
however after the change of Government (post-Brexit), pharmacy minister 
announced that the proposed funding reduction would not be implemented.

It was thought that there was a lack of understanding in relation to pharmacies and 
Officers were keen to communication to members of the public what was on offer. It 
was stated that many pharmacies already operated with a 7 day a week mind-set 
with some also opening late. The training to become a pharmacist took 5 years and it 
was thought that one of the roles of the pharmacist was to help treat people before 
they became unwell.

The Panel queried what action the pharmacist could take if they became aware of 
customers consistently purchasing non-prescription medication such as paracetamol. 
Officers stated that in circumstances such as this the Pharmacist could refer the 
customer to the GP and had the ability to refuse to make the sale. Officers stated 
that there was a requirement for a pharmacist to be present on the premise and that 
they had a duty of care towards the customers.

The Panel also considered whether leaflets could be distributed to customers 
providing detailed information regarding services the Pharmacy could provide. 
Officers stated that this was possible and that leaflets were already distributed to 
diabetic patients providing them with information such as getting their eyes tested. 

Members queried whether an early warning system could be provided in relation to 
pharmacies that were particularly stressed financially or under risk so that 
preparations could be made if they were going to close.

Page 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

The Panel agreed that the idea of the Healthy Living Pharmacy was good and that 
work was needed to build on promotion and inform people who did not normally use 
a pharmacy of what was on offer and encourage them to use the services. Members 
encouraged the idea of self-care. The Director for Public Health agreed and stated 
that it was important for the pharmacy service to link and align with other services so 
that it did not become isolated. 

The Panel queried how the work was being tracked and it was stated that each piece 
of work was being monitored differently and that each community pharmacy was 
being asked to keep records about how many people requested information in 
relation to specific areas such as smoking cessation or diabetes or requested a 
review of their medication. 

Resolved: 1. That the good joint working on community pharmacy between 
the City of Wolverhampton Council, the Local Pharmaceutical Committee, 
Wolverhampton CCG and NHS England be noted.
2. That the Panel receive future updates on developments

6 Proposed engagement and consultation plan for the re-commissioning of 
Substance Misuse Services in Wolverhampton.
The Panel received a report setting out the engagement and consultation plans to 
inform the re-commissioning of the city’s substance misuse system (including 
primary care, the voluntary sector, specialist and acute services) by the Public Health 
and Wellbeing team. The report provided members with an opportunity to inform the 
process prior to commencing the engagement and consultation period in late March.

The key requirements of the new system would be to deliver a safe and effective 
service to all Wolverhampton residents and would incorporate the core treatment 
functions plus the prescribing function, supervised consumption, needle exchange 
service, community and residential detox and rehabilitation, aspects of dual 
diagnosis client pathways and drug testing.

A Substance Misuse Commissioning Steering Group has been established with 
representation from the Public Health and Wellbeing team, the CCG, Local Authority 
commissioners and other key teams e.g. Children’s Services and Housing services, 
Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust, West Midlands Police, Healthwatch and Public 
Health England.  This group had now met twice and would be responsible for 
overseeing the engagement and consultation process as well as the development of 
the re-commissioning process. 

Based on significant changes in drug trends over the last five years and with the 
emerging evidence of prescribed/over the counter medication, the acknowledgement 
of alcohol related harm as well as awareness regarding New Psychoactive 
Substances (NPS formerly known as legal highs), there was a need to commission 
services which sought to continually innovate, meet emerging needs and that were 
flexible to the changing landscape.

The Panel queried whether the Council was happy with its current providers including 
Recovery Near You and questioned the size of the market place for such services. 
The question was also raised as to what services were on offer to children who had 
alcoholic parents.   Officers stated that there had been a huge change from the 
medical model to a recovery focused model which had been difficult to embed given 

Page 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

the tough nature of the work involved. However the QCQ had highlighted some 
exemplary practices and that the Recovery Near You service was performing very 
well given the large number of people presenting with addictions in the area. Officers 
also stated that there were a few good providers in the market place and that there 
had previously been a high response to the tendering process. The question was 
raised as to whether the tender could include a requirement for service providers to 
look to address underlying issues about why people were turning to substance 
misuse and to try to identify any triggers. Officers agreed that this was possible and 
that a family oriented, holistic approach was required. 

The Panel queried the scale of addiction in Wolverhampton and it was estimated that 
around 40,000 people had problems with alcohol and that there was an issue with it 
becoming normalised and therefore not being addressed at the primary care level. It 
was thought that work needed to be done to address this low lying drinking and 
engage with GPs without appearing to be interfering overtly in people’s lifestyle 
choices.  The Director for Public Health stated that she had responded to a letter 
from Liam Byrne in relation to children of alcoholics and that the Council was 
adopting a whole family approach and working in partnership with Adult and Children 
Services.

Resolved: 1. That the Panel note the background information and 
commissioning plans for Substance Misuse services
2. Endorse the proposed engagement and consultation process, subject to any 
comments listed above.

7 Beacon Centre for the Blind
The Panel welcomed Helen Brown and Katie Jobling from the Beacon Centre for the 
Blind.  

It was stated that around 3600 people had suffered a fall in Wolverhampton in the 
last year due to sight issues and that in many cases this could then lead to further 
complications and issues for patients. It was also stated that issues such as isolation 
and loneliness were often big concerns for people with reduced sight. One of the 
most effective ways to help alleviate some of the problems experienced was through 
the introduction of new technology and training including:

 Mobile advice Services / adaptations advice
 Information points in retail outlets 
 Community programmes such as Activeyes 
 Link Line – befriending support 
 Talking newspaper / audio transcription
 Employment programmes 
 Activity clubs (all ages) 
 New to sight loss courses

The Director for Public Health highlighted that pharmacies could be used to help in 
relation to referring to the appropriate service and that the sigh loss newsletter could 
be distributed by the pharmacies. 

Resolved: That the presentation be noted and that Helen Brown and Katie Jobling 
be thanked for the presentation. 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

8 WMAS Quality Account 2016/17
The Panel received a presentation from Sue Green, Deputy Director of Nursing & 
Quality, WMAS in relation to the Quality Account 2016/2017.

The Panel congratulated Mrs Green and the WMAS in relation to the outstanding 
rating that had been awarded by the Care Quality Commission. It was noted that 
activity had been improving consistently and that there had been many changes 
since the previous year with a very obvious improvement on New Year’s Day this 
year. 

A question had been submitted by Health Watch in relation to the fact that there used 
to be a paramedic responder vehicle based at Tettenhall Fire Station and another at 
Merridale Fire Station which were thought to be no longer operating and the 
community ambulance Station at Tettenhall had now closed. The question focused of 
the clinical risks of not having a clinician based in the locality for residents suffering a 
cardiac arrest in Tettenhall?

Mrs Green stated that the Service looked carefully at where activity occurred when 
organising services and that unfortunately the Fire Service facility did not meet the 
governance requirements or the WMAS. Concerns included the fact that the 
ambulances and vehicles could not be cleaned on the Fire Service premises and as 
such they had been moved back to the hub. 

Resolved: That the report and presentation be received and noted. 

9 Work Plan
Resolved: That the workplan be updated and noted. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



wolverhampton.gov.uk

Our mission:

Working as one to 

serve our city

City of Wolverhampton

Council
Katie Spence: Consultant in Public Health

Anna Hunt Smith: Consultant in Dental 

Public Health, PHE

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 N
o: 5



Oral health in Children: Background

• With the transfer of Public Health to Local 

Authorities in April 2013, LAs statutorily required 

to provide or commission oral health promotion 

programmes to improve the health of the local 

population

• They are required to provide or commission oral 

health surveys

• NHS England commission dental services, which 

includes some oral health promotion services

• Vast majority of Wolverhampton water is 

fluoridated

P
age 10



Why oral health is important:

P
age 11



Impact of Poor Oral Health

P
age 12



National trends 2014

P
age 13



Severe poor oral health

P
age 14



Hospital Admissions

P
age 15



Inequalities in oral health

P
age 16



Local Oral Health Survey of 5 

and 3 year olds
• Biennial national survey of 5 year olds

• Dental examination on sample of children in 

schools

• Most recent survey 2015 sampled 2,089 (64.4% ) 

of 5 yr olds Wolverhampton 

• 27.8%  experienced tooth decayed, missing or 

extracted teeth, which is above the national 

average of 24.7%

• In 2013 a survey of 3 year olds via nurseries 

showed 13% had decayed, missing or extracted 

teeth.

P
age 17



Wolverhampton 5 yr olds survey 2014-15 

compared to West Midlands & England

P
age 18



5 year olds participating in the Oral 

Health Survey in 2014-15 by ward.

P
age 19



Percentage of decay in 5 year olds 

surveyed, by ward

% with decay 

experience (dmft>0)

40-49%

30-39%

20-29%

10-19%

P
age 20



Prevalence of caries by deprivation 

for Wolverhampton

P
age 21



Extractions 2-16 years of age, at New Cross 

Hospital, 2007-12 

• Increasing number of extractions over that time

• More teeth were extracted in boys than girls

• White British accounted for the highest proportion, and the 

second largest was those of South Asian origin

• The mean age of children attending decreased over that 

period

• Number of primary teeth extracted has increased, and the 

number of permanent teeth has decreased.

• 3.2% returned for a repeat Extraction under General 

Anaesthetic within three years

P
age 22



Dental extractions 0-19 year olds in 

Wolverhampton compared to West Midlands

P
age 23



Dental extractions trends…

P
age 24



Wolverhampton Community Dental 

Service
Includes children and adults 

• With severe learning disabilities

• With severe autistic spectrum disorders 

• With physical disabilities and wheel chair users

• With severe mental health problems

• With a dental phobia

• Who are engaging in substance misuse

• From socially excluded groups

• Elderly and frail adults living in care homes

• Looked after children

• Children with high treatment needs who are difficult to 

manage

P
age 25



PHE Toolkit for Prevention
Ten Key Areas for Action Council commissioned and supported progress

Guidance for primary dental teams

Principles of toothbrushing for oral health Training of frontline line staff

Development of local resources, such as summary card

Distribution of Dental packs 

Establishing supervised toothbrushing schemes

Increasing fluoride availability Water Fluoridation

Ensure people are using toothpastes with correct concentration of 

fluoride

Promotion of fluoride varnish

Identifying vulnerable groups who may benefit from targeted 

fluoride varnish

Healthy Eating Advice Part of Healthy Child Programme

Links to Obesity work

Sugar free medicines

Improving periodontal health

Smoking and Tobacco Use Encourage General Dental Practice to provide brief advice

Alcohol misuse and oral health Promotion of online training for dental teams

Prevention of erosion Promote increased consumption of fruit and veg

Helping Patients to Change their behaviour Link to wider behaviour change programmes

P
age 26



What we are doing…
• Health Visitors & School Nurses: included in the contract; 

trained and submitted an action plan, distributing dental 

packs

• Practice Nurses: dental packs distributed at one year old 

immunisations, particularly in areas of highest need 

• Nurseries: developing a supervised tooth brushing 

scheme in the seven LA nurseries, with a pilot due to 

commence after Easter, and full year programme starting 

in September

• Supporting promotion of fluoride varnish

• Working with NHS England on how to target the most 

vulnerable groups, including refugees and migrants

P
age 27



…and more

• Support increased consent and access to schools for 

dental surveys

• Identify other early years staff who can be trained to 

support this work

• Active participation on the West Midlands Oral Health 

Network, identifying opportunities for collaboration, 

information sharing and highlighting good practice

• Exploring opportunities for a regional wide social media 

campaign

P
age 28



 

 

Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 

 

Health Scrutiny Panel is recommended to: 

 

 Consider the content of this report  

 Confirm if any queries or clarification are required in relation to content 

  

 

Health Scrutiny 
April 2017 

  
Report title  
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Cllr Samuels   
 

Key decision No 

In forward plan No 

Wards affected All 

Accountable director Linda Sanders – People 

Originating service People 

Accountable employee(s) Steven Marshall – Director of Strategy & Transformation, 

Wolverhampton CCG 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Steven Marshall - Director of Strategy & Transformation, 

Wolverhampton CCG  

Page 29

Agenda Item No: 7



 

1.0 Purpose 

1.1 To provide a report on access to general practice including availability of appointments, 

opening hours, use of walk in centres and consistency in seeing the same GP.  

 

1.2 In response to this request the report also provides an overview of some of the initiatives 

that are taking place to improve access in primary care.      

 

2.0      Background 

2.1 National & Local Perspective 

At national level there is a drive for general practices to improve access through 

introducing a range of new consultation types including online and telephone 

consultations  

 

This is being achieved through a number of projects that have been launched locally in 

response to the General Practice Forward View (published April 2016). An extensive 

programme of work is well under way to ensure we respond appropriately.  

 

Whilst there are some 93 projects attached to the responsive action plan for the General 

Practice Forward View the CCG is committed to ensuring that these projects are linked to 

the work already taking place in the city to implement our Primary Care Strategy.  All 

projects seek to achieve improvements in the following areas:- 

 

 Invest more money in general practice  

 Address workforce difficulties that have been identified as a major threat to the 

delivery of general practice in the future  

 Manage the workload in general practice through introducing new ways of working 

 Commitment to improve practice infra-structure  

 Redesign care through practices working together at scale to deliver general 

medical services in the future.   

 

The CCGs Governing Body has oversight of both programmes of work & timely 

progression that is taking place. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

2.2 Patient Engagement & Feedback 

The CCG is working closely with practices from across the city in response to feedback 

from patients and carers about the improvements they would like to see in general 

practice.  Feedback and suggestions were sought on what the priorities were for patients 

using primary medical services.  A range of suggestions were made but the most 

prominent expectation was that access should be improved so that patients could be 

seen more flexibly, whether at their GP practice or during the evening or weekends.  

 

The General Practice Forward View encourages groups of practices to work together and 

offers the opportunity to tackle the frustrations that so many people feel in accessing care 

in general practice. 

 

2.3      NHS Operating Guidance October 2016 

Since 2016/17 Primary Care has been one of the ‘must do’ national priorities and 

continues to be recognised as such through until 2018/19.  This is underpinned by 

ensuring the sustainability of general practice is achieved through implementation of the 

General Practice Forward View, including plans for practice transformation detailed within 

the CCGs Primary Care Strategy and implementation of the Ten High Impact Actions. 

Page 30



 

 

By March 2019 access to primary care will have been extended and improved by 45 

minutes per 1,000 patients, national funding will be available from 2018/19 although work 

has already begun locally to commence the journey of improvement in 2016/17. 

 

 

3 Access to General Practice 

3.1      Availability of Appointments & Opening Hours  

Practices are commissioned to provide general medical services during core hours which 

are from 8.00 am till 6.30 pm Monday to Friday.  Some practices may choose to close for 

half a day at some stage in the week and have arrangements in place with another 

provider to provide care for their patients whilst they are closed.  Similarly, outside of core 

hours the CCG commission an out of hours provider (Vocare) to provide care for patients 

whilst their practice is closed, they are based at the Urgent Care Centre, New Cross 

Hospital and calls are streamed via NHS111 to ensure patients are directed to the most 

appropriate service.   

 

All practices will have in place a practice information leaflet confirming how to access the 

practice, the minimum information that should be included within the leaflet is as follows:- 

 

 Practice opening hours 

 Whether an appointment system is operated by the practice 

 How to access a doctor or nurse 

 A description of all services provided by all members of the team & how 

patients can contact them 

 How to obtain repeat prescriptions 

 How to make a complaint 

 A description of patient rights and responsibilities, including choice of GP 

 How the practice use personal information 

 Broader health resource information including NHS111 and website address, 

local walk in centres & out of hours services 

 Information about the assignment by the contractor to it’s new & existing 

patients of an accountable GP 

 Information about the assignment by the contractor to its patients aged 75 & 

over of an accountable GP 

 

Practice information leaflets are a great source of local information and will often help 

patients to address any queries or concerns they have about how to access their 

practice.   

 

3.2 Improving Access Schemes 

There are a range of initiatives that have taken place recently in response to patient 

feedback and national guidance that has enabled in the region of 8000 more 

appointments to be available to patients registered with GPs in the city, as follows:- 

 

CCG Xmas & New Year Opening Scheme  

Primary Care Home is a collaborative of practices (18 total) who have committed to 

working together to provide health care services.  Over the bank holiday period there 

were 3 hubs open serving patients from 18 practices across the city.   

 

 

Page 31



 

The highlights from the evaluation report were as follows:- 

 

 Not all appointments were fully utilised 

 Appointments with GPs were better utilised than those with Practice Nurses 

 Some sites had more than one GP available, there wasn’t sufficient demand for 2 

GPs 

 Uptake varied depending on day of the week, higher uptake on Saturdays, less on  

Boxing Day & New Year’s Day 

 Did not attend rates were very low, out of a total of 54 appointments only 4 patients 

didn’t attend 

 Patients who provided feedback confirmed that if the practice hadn’t been open they 

would have waited until the next working day to be seen or gone to the Urgent Care 

Centre 

 

The total cost for this scheme was £40,000. 

 

Winter Pressures Scheme  

As a result of funding support from NHS England the winter pressures scheme was 

launched mid December and went live from 23 December through until 3 March 2017. 

Practices from across the city were invited to offer additional appointments for patients.  

To be eligible for funding practices were required to increase bookable appointments on 

the day with no reduction in other appointments or activity.  The increase in appointments 

was to be achieved through more staff  (Doctors and/or Nurses) being available or longer 

opening hours for practices and was in addition to any other agreed extended opening 

hours.  

 

The highlights from our evaluation report confirm the following:- 

 10 practices provided additional appointments 

 A combination of weekday & weekend opening was provided 

 Weekend opening was Saturday only 

 6 practices provided additional appointments in hours 

 4 hubs opened on Saturdays serving patients from 18 practices through working at 

scale 

 Do not attend rates were very low for both weekdays & weekends, most days zero 

but on some days upto only 3 at one site 

 Appointments during weekdays were fully utilised & helped manage demand  

 Uptake for Saturday opening varied, performance at some sites improved gradually 

although some sites were more popular than others  

 Communications to patients have been consistently reinforced via posters, practice 

website(s), text messages, answerphone messages, redirection via 111 and also 

advertised via CCG website too 

 

Funding for this scheme was fully committed at a cost of £125,000 in total. 

 

Extended Winter Pressures Scheme 

The CCG encouraged practices to continue to offer additional appointments upto the end 

of March involving all 10 practices.  Uptake on Saturday mornings continued to be 

variable, the most popular site was Showell Park.  However, additional appointments 

available during weekdays continued to be more popular with patients and continued to 

have very low did not attend rates. 

 

Page 32



 

Funding for this scheme was made available via the CCG at a cost of £60,000 for the 

month of March.  

 

Improving Access 2017-19 Scheme (including Bank Holidays) 

In response to national guidance & learning from the above schemes the CCG is 

encouraging practices to work together at scale to improve access during 2017/18 by 

providing 20 minutes per 1,000 patients additional appointments per week by the end of 

June.  Practice groups are finalising their delivery plans to confirm who will be providing 

the service and which practices they are working together with.  The funding for this 

scheme focusses on 3 priorities:- 

 

 Improving Access 

 Working at Scale  

 Implementation of 6 of the 10 high impact actions 

 

The 10 high impact actions can be found in Appendix 1, this overview confirms what 

action is being taken by the CCG and it’s member practices across the city to improve 

access through the use of technology, investment, training for staff & patients that will be 

delivered through new ways of working.  

 

In addition and as a result of planning for periods of higher demand the CCG has 

commissioned each practice group to provide at scale coverage across each bank 

holiday during 2017/18.  Each model of care will provide hub opening through working 

together with other practices to improve access and share the workload placed upon 

primary care.  There were 4 hubs open over the Easter Bank Holiday, from May onwards 

there will be at least 5 hubs open providing access to primary care and reducing demand 

on the Urgent Care Centre.  

 

The anticipated annual cost for this scheme is likely to be £560,000. 

 

3.3      Other Sources of Support 

There are also two walk in centres in the city, as follows:- 

 
Phoenix Walk in Centre 
Activity has been above contracted levels during 2016/17 and in the previous year also.  
At month 9 of 2016/17 activity was above contracted levels by 1,617.   Further data is 
awaited & activity will continue to be monitored closely in order to determine how 
demand can be managed more effectively through correlation with other provisions in the 
city. 

 
Urgent Care Centre 
This is a new configuration for activity that had previously provided services from  
Showell Park, GP Out of Hours and also Accident & Emergency. 
   

All activity regardless of type (telephone, home visits or face to face) is monitored 

separately but pooled together for contract purposes.  The Total activity for 

Wolverhampton was approximately 70% of contracted levels in 2016/17.  In 17/18 the 

contracted activity levels will be adjusted to reflect this.  The Out of Hours element is fully 

integrated into the full 24/7 Urgent Care Centre, the timescale has been adjusted/ 

extended from the traditional timeframe (from 18:30 - 08:00 each week day to 17:30 – 

09:00) to enable patients that call NHS111 during this extended time period to secure 

access to a GP at times when practices may be unable to accommodate them.   

Page 33



 

This should result in fewer patients calling NHS111 back as their surgery has either only 

just opened and they cannot get through, or the surgery is just closing. 

 

We are working with practices, NHS111 and the Urgent Care Centre to ensure patients 

can access a GP at the Urgent Care Centre if their practice is at full capacity.  Alongside 

this we are also working with Accident & Emergency to ensure all patients suitable for the 

Urgent Care Centre are redirected from Accident & Emergency in order manage demand 

effectively.    

 

 

4.0 Financial implications 

4.1 Local and National Funds have been made available to improve access in general 

practice.  Individual costs are detailed above, investment in the region of £750,000 has 

been committed since December 2016.  National funding will be available in 2018/19 

taking the total available funds next year to £1,500,000 in line with national requirements.  

 

 

5.0 Legal implications 

5.1 There are no direct legal implications associated with this report at this stage.  

 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

6.1 Through adopting a collaborative approach to responding to local demand management 

there is an expectation that all practices will begin to offer a consistent level of provision 

by the end of June 2017.  This consistent provision will enable patients to access 

services across the city any day of the week through either their usual practice, a 

practice working in partnership with their practice or the usual out of hours provider for 

the city.  

 

 

7.0 Environmental implications 

7.1 NA 

 

 

8.0 Human resources implications 

8.1 The Primary Care workforce is being met with unprecedented demand and as a key 

strand of the implementation of our Primary Care Strategy care redesign and workload 

are pivotal areas of work that are vitally important if we are to achieve a sustainable 

primary care for the city.   

Through the development of new models of care and commissioning primary care  

differently in future we are confident that we will achieve sustainable primary care  

services for our the population. 

 

 

9.0 Corporate landlord implications 

NA 

 

10.0 Schedule of background papers 

NA 

 

Page 34



 

Further Guidance : 10 High Impact Actions              Appendix 1 

 

 

Whilst the Transformation Fund seeks to deliver achievement of the 10 High Impact 

Actions through practices working together to provide services at scale it should be 

recognised that in addition to the Transformation fund payment there are a range of other 

projects and funding streams that will enable practices to successfully achieve this new 

way of working.   These are indicated in the bottom row for each High Impact Action 

above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 35



 

 

 

 

Priority 2017/18 

High Impact Action Benefit for practice Benefit for patient 

1 Active signposting 

Patients towards the most appropriate 

source of help to include Web and app-

based portals which provide self-help 

resources 

Frees GP time. Makes more appropriate use of each team member's skills. 

Reduces internal referrals. 

Improves appointment availability. 

Reduces low-value consultations and 

onward referrals. Shorter wait to get to 

see the most appropriate person. 

Other projects working towards this High Impact Action funded separately by the CCG 

Link to Social Prescribing below  

Admin and Reception Training (Introductory and Online training 3 year programme) 

Directory of service update and relaunch (WIN) 

Sound Doctor 

Short Term plan 

6 months 

Medium Term Plan 

12 – 18 months 

Longer Term Plan 

24 months + 

Measures of success & triggers for 

practices to receive payment  

Reception staff training 

Social Prescribing Link Workers in post. 

Agree definitions of low value 

consultations 

Monitor the numbers of patients 

supported by Social Prescribing Link 

Workers 

Monitor the impact of SP on number 

patients supported by the service 

Enhanced Directory of Services 

available locally (WIN) 

DOS embedded across health & social 

care sectors 

Online Care Navigation Training 

Medical Assistant(s) Role embedded 

 1 Number of patients supported by 

social prescribing 

2 Reduction in attendances at practice 

by patients supported by social 

prescribing 

3 Numbers of patients accessing online 

directory 

4 Reduction in the number of low value 

consultations 

 

P
age 36



 

 

 

Priority 2017/18 

High Impact Action Benefit for practice Benefit for patient 

2 New consultation types, such as 

phone and email.     

Shorter appointments (eg phone consultation average 50% shorter, 66% dealt 

with entirely on phone). More opportunities to support self care with e-

consultations, text message follow-ups and group consultations. 

Greater convenience, often no longer 

requiring time off work/caring duties. 

Improves availability of appointments. 

More opportunities to build knowledge, 

skills and confidence for self care. 

Other projects working towards this High Impact Action 

Online Consultation software to enable implementation of different types and working at scale 

Patient Online services i.e. Sound Doctor ,apps and Online access to appointments. 

Short Term plan 

6 months 

Medium Term Plan 12-18 month Longer Term Plan 

24 months + 

Measures of success and triggers for 

practices to receive payment 

Phone Consultation 

Set baseline of phone consultations by 

practice. 

Agree trajectory of increasing the % of 

all consultations undertaken by phone 

over 6 month, 12-18 month and 24+ 

months. 

Complete public awareness campaign 

on the benefits of telephone 

consultation and the clinical 

presentations where this would be 

appropriate. 

E-Consultation improved uptake & 

availability to patients 

Simple Telehealth 

Group Consultations 

 

 1 Number of contacts using new 

consultation types 

Increase in number of consultations 

completed by phone 

2 Numbers of patients taking part in 

group consultations 

 

P
age 37



 

 

Priority 2018/19 

High Impact Action Benefit for practice Benefit for patient 

3 Reduce DNAs   Improves appointment availability. Free GP time.  Easier to avoid queues developing, 

through more accurate matching of 

capacity with demand. 

Other projects working towards this High Impact Action 

Social Prescribing  

Short Term plan 

6 months 

Medium Term Plan 

12 – 18 months 

Longer Term Plan 

24 months + 

Measures of success & triggers for 

practices to receive payment  

Set baseline of DNA rates by practice. 

Review of practice DNA policies. 

Agree trajectory of improving 

attendance rates over 6 month, 12-18 

month and 24+ months. 

Text Messaging to confirm 

appointments  

Patients completing appointment cards 

Appointment Reminders by text 

Practices  reporting attendances (e.g. 

number of appointments booked and 

attended) 

Telephone follow up 

Primary Mental Health Strategy 

implementation 

 1 Reduction in practice DNA rates from 

baseline levels 

 

P
age 38



 

 

Priority 2017/18 

High Impact Action Benefit for practice Benefit for patient 

4 Develop the team   Frees GP time. Makes more appropriate use of each team member's skills. 

Reduces internal referrals. Improved job satisfaction for administrative staff 

undertaking enhanced roles. 

Improves appointment availability. 

Reduces low-value consultations and 

onward referrals. Shorter wait to get to 

see the most appropriate person. 

Other projects working towards this High Impact Action 

Vulnerable Practice programme 

Practice Resilience Programme 

Time for Care programme 

Practice Manager Development programme 

Correspondence Management 

IT automated tasks 

Develop Community Neighbourhood Teams 

Introduction of a range of new roles within the practice team including Clinical Pharmacist, Mental Health Therapist, Practice level Counsellor, Nurse Associates, 

Physician Associate, partnership working with Paramedics. 

Short Term plan 

6 months 

Medium Term Plan 

12 – 18 months 

Longer Term Plan 

24 months + 

Measures of success & triggers for 

practices to receive payment  

Workforce training and development 

programme ie Time for Care, Practice 

Resilience & Practice Manager 

Programme 

 

Physician Associates 

Mental health Support Workers 

Nursing Associates 

Admin & Reception Staff/Medical Assistants 

Practice Managers 

Practice Pharmacists 

Minor Illness Nurses 

1 Number of contacts delivered by non-

medical practice staff 

2 Activities undertaken by Medical 

Assistants 

 

33

P
age 39



 

 

Priority 2018/19 

High Impact Action Benefit for practice Benefit for patient 

5 Productive work flows 

Introduce new ways of working which 

enable staff to work smarter, not just 

harder.  

Improves appointment availability and 

patient experience.  

Frees time for staff throughout the practice. Reduces errors and rework Improves appointment availability and 

customer service.  

Other projects working towards this High Impact Action 

As in High Impact Action 4 

Short Term plan 

6 months 

Medium Term Plan 

12 – 18 months 

Longer Term Plan 

24 months + 

Measures of success & triggers for 

practices to receive payment  

Better work flow for prescriptions, letters 

and queries 

 

 

As above 

Consider ways to release GPs from 

administrative tasks 

 1 Number of additional appointments 

generated as a result 

2 Positive patient experience ie GP 

Survey/FFT etc 

 

Priority 2018/19 

High Impact Action Benefit for practice Benefit for patient 

6 Personal productivity 

Support staff to work in an optimal 

fashion by reducing waste in 

routine processes .  

Frees clinicians to do more in each consultation, with fewer distractions and 

frustrations. Improves staff wellbeing and job satisfaction 

Improved quality of consultations, with 

more achieved. Reduced absence of 

staff.  

Other projects working towards this High Impact Action 

As in High Impact 4 

Short Term plan 

6 months 

Medium Term Plan 

12 – 18 months 

Longer Term Plan 

24 months + 

Measures of success & triggers for 

practices to receive payment  

Computer confidence & greater use of 

IT (patients/practice staff) 

Continued support for both individual & 

team resilience  

Less administrative work undertaken by 

clinicians 

Sustained improvement in use of 

clinicians time 

  

P
age 40



 

Longer appointment slots for complex 

patients  

 

P
age 41



 

 

Priority 2017/18 

High Impact Action   Benefit  for practice Benefit for patient 

7 Partnership working 

Practices working at scale offers 

benefits in terms of improved 

organisational resilience and 

efficiency,   

Frees GP time, makes best use of the specific expertise of staff in the practice. Creates 

economies of scale and opportunities for new services and organisational models. 

Access to expanded range of services 

wrapped around the patient in the 

community. Reduces delays introduced 

by referrals to different providers. 

 

  

Other projects working towards this High Impact Action 

All of the above mentioned additional projects underpin the successful delivery of the GP Transformation Fund. 

Short Term plan 

6 months 

Medium Term Plan 

12 – 18 months 

Longer Term Plan 

24 months + 

Measures of success & triggers for 

practices to receive payment  

Implementation of the Consultant 

Connect platform or the further 

development of the Advice and 

Guidance. 

Training and development required for 

both these systems. 

Practices working at scale 

Direct Access to Therapists 

Work collaboratively with specialists 

Healthy Living Pharmacies 

1 Number of additional appointments 

generated through collaborative working 

2 Number of direct access referrals to 

therapists 

3 Reduction in the number of referrals 

to secondary care 

4 Number of appointments for patients 

registered at another practice 

 

P
age 42



 

 

Priority 2017/18 

High Impact Action Benefit for practice Benefit for patient 

8 Use social prescribing 

Refer or signpost patients to 

services which increase 

wellbeing and independence.

   

Frees GP time, makes best use of their specific medical expertise. Improved quality of life. Improved ability 

to live an independent life. 

 

  

Other projects working towards this High Impact Action 

Social Prescribers x3 12 month pilot 

Directory of service update and relaunch (WIN) 

 

Short Term plan 

6 months 

Medium Term Plan 

12 – 18 months 

Longer Term Plan 

24 months + 

Measures of success & triggers for 

practices to receive payment  

Social Prescribing (12 month pilot 

intially with commitment to extend) 

Monitor the numbers of patients 

supported by Social Prescribing Link 

Workers 

Monitor the impact of SP on number of 

attendances at the practice by patients 

supported by the service 

Reduction in patients who are socially isolated 

Improved physical/ mental wellbeing & independence 

GP time freed up for patients with complex needs 

1 Number of patients supported by 

social prescribing 

2 Patient feedback positive experiences 

of care 

3 GP Survey & 

Complaints/Compliments 

4 Improved patient outcomes including 

reduced presentations within urgent 

care system 

 

Priority 2017/18 

High Impact Action Benefit for practice Benefit for patient 

9. Self Care   Frees GP time, makes best use of their specific medical expertise. Improved ability to live independently. 

Other projects working towards this High Impact Action 

Patient Online services i.e. Sound Doctor ,apps and Online access to appointments. 

Social Prescribers x3 12 month pilot 

Directory of service update and relaunch (WIN) 

Making Every Contact Count resources 

Short Term plan 

6 months 

Medium Term Plan 12-18 month Measures of success and triggers for 

practices to receive payment 

P
age 43



 

Number of staff in practice completing 

MECC training 

Numbers of patients with Long Term 

Conditions taking part in a LTC review – 

with a defined self care component 

Reduce dependance on community 

neighbourhood teams 

Continued reduction in dependency on practice / community neighbourhood team 1 Number of patients taking part in a 

comprehensive long term conditions 

review 

2 Number of referrals to Stop Smoking 

Services 

3 Number of referrals to Drug and 

Alcohol services 

Priority 2018/19 

High Impact Action Benefit for practice Benefit for patient 

10 Build QI Expertise .

  

Improved ability to achieve rapid, safe and sustainable improvements to any aspect of care. 

Increased staff morale and sense of control 

Assurance of continuous improvement 

in patient safety, efficiency and quality of 

care.  

Other projects working towards this High Impact Action 

As in High Impact Action 4 above and GP Peer Review, Consultant Connect and Partnership Working (High Impact Action 7)  

Short Term plan 

6 months 

Medium Term Plan 12-18 month Measures of success and triggers for 

practices to receive payment 

Timely care provided closer to home 

Continued co-production of improved 

service provision through working with 

PPGs & engaging with population 

Cohesive team working & commitment 

to continuously improve care & service 

quality 

Reduction in negative care & service experiences 

Multi-disciplinary Team Work fully embedded at Practice/Group & Community 

Neighbourhood Team level 

1 Practice undertaking 1 comprehensive 

QI project per year. 

2 Practice Group & Community 

Neighbourhood Team 3 Service Quality 

Dashboard Performance 

 

 

P
age 44



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 

Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 

 

The Panel is recommended to: 

 

1. Note the principles adopted within the physical activity framework but consider how the 

City best utilises its assets to improve health and well-being for residents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Health Scrutiny Panel 
27 April 2017 
 

  
Report title Towards an Active City – A physical activity 

framework 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Councillor Paul Sweet 
Public Health and Wellbeing 

Wards affected All 

Accountable director Linda Sanders, People 

Originating service Public Health and Wellbeing 

Accountable employee(s) Richard Welch 
Tel 
Email 
Andrea 
Fieldhouse 
Tel 

Email 

Head of Healthier Place  
01902 552162 
Richard.welch@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Active People and Places Manager 
 
01902 556224 

Andrea.fieldhouse@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

People Leadership Team 

Education Leadership Team 

Obesity Programme Board 

Place Leadership Team 

Senior Executive Board 

Cabinet 

17 October 2016 

5 December 2016 

6 December 2016 

12 December 2016 

20 December 2016 

18 January 2017 

Page 45

Agenda Item No: 8



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 

1.0 Purpose 

 

1.1 To provide an overview of the adopted principles within  ‘Towards an Active City – a 

physical activity framework’ which has been developed to encourage the population to be 

active every day.  In addition to this, to consider how the city best utilises its assets to 

improve health and well-being. 

 

2.0 Background 

 

2.1 Our Vision, Our City 2030’ (2016) outlines an ambition for “a city which is serious about 

health and wellbeing” but with only half of the population undertaking regular physical 

activity, we are unlikely to achieve the levels of health improvement we require. If we are 

to achieve this ambition, we must turnaround rising levels of physical inactivity, and in 

doing so address some of the health inequalities that exist. 

 

2.2 The framework is consistent with national strategy and is influenced by both 

Government’s ‘Active Nation’ strategy (2015) and Sport England’s ‘Towards an Active 

Nation’ strategy (2016). The framework also aligns to other relevant Black Country and 

West Midlands plans, particularly the emerging “West Midlands on the Move 2016-2030: 

Physical Activity Strategy” being developed by the West Midlands Combined Authority 

(WMCA).  This calls for "active citizens", developed through a mixture of mass 

participation initiatives, behavioural change schemes and structural improvements. 

 
2.3 The Public Health Outcomes Framework for Wolverhampton illustrates that 35.2% of the 

local population are inactive and only 49.9% are taking part in 150 minutes of physical 
activity in line with the Chief Medical Officers (CMO) guidelines for physical activity.  The 
remaining 14.9% do some activity but do not achieve 150mins per week therefore, 64.8% 
of residents are undertaking a minimum of 1 x 30 minutes’ activity per week. (Source: 
Public Health England - Public Health Outcomes Framework. Measure: percentage of 
physically active and inactive adults. Time period(s): 2015) 

 
2.4 The City has a range of assets at its disposal which lend themselves to providing 

physical activity opportunities; these include a stock of physical assets such as 
community buildings, parks and open spaces but also human resources in the form of 
community groups and social enterprise based organisations. Walking for Health is a 
good example of a part subsidised, volunteer led sustainable physical activity programme 
which takes place at various sites across the city. Similarly, Parkrun is a national 
movement with local weekly provision in West Park and is self-sustainable. Further work 
is required to understand the dependency thresholds of such provision if this is to be 
replicated across the City on an industrial scale. 

 
2.5  The Public Health function within the Council is mid-way through a re-design of the 

Healthy Lifestyle Service. This exercise aims to transform the recently transferred service 
to become more modernised and efficient whilst maximising the impact upon public 
health outcomes.  

 

 

Page 46



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 

3.0 Progress 

 

3.1 ‘Towards an Active City - a physical activity framework’ has been developed to help the 

city to encourage the population to be active every day. A Toward an Active City Plan on 

a Page has been devised (appendix one) with a more detailed framework that can be 

accessed in the following Towards an Active City 

 

3.2 The intention of the framework is to root physical activity into the city’s plans and 

priorities, which have a profound impact on the planning of health and physical activity 

including the perceptions of the people, the place, and its business competitiveness. It 

also aligns with the WMCA vision to ignite a social movement that makes physical activity 

and active citizenship the norm. 

 

3.4 The work of key stakeholders has steered the framework such as West Midlands Police, 
University of Wolverhampton, schools, and other education providers.  Consultation was 
undertaken during the development of the framework.  The framework is based on data, 
intelligence and insight provided both by national, Black Country and local partners who 
have a vested interest in the city including for sport and physical activity. It is also 
influenced by key national, Black Country and local strategies and policy documents. 

 

3.5 The framework concentrates on those who are currently inactive and offers approaches 
that can be taken to make physical activity a normal part of everyday life.  

 

3.6 The framework recommends that an independent Active City Board, with an independent 
chair should be established to bring together health, physical activity, and economic 
stakeholders to deliver and implement the framework and ensure physical activity is 
considered as part of the major plans and policies across the city. The board will be 
responsible for producing an action plan that will set out how the immediate People, 
Place and Business strategic priorities should be implemented over the next three years 
with longer term actions up to 2030.   

 
3.7 The action plan will assist the board in determining the resource implications for each 

priority and how this will be measured.  
 

3.8 The Active City Board will align to established strategic boards within the city including 

the Council’s Cabinet, Health and Well Being Board and Obesity Programme Board.   
 
3.9 The framework recognises that this is a starting point to delivering the size and scale of 

change which is needed by 2030.  
 
3.10 The framework is supported by a suite of supporting documents which advise on playing 

pitches, built facilities and open spaces where sport and physical activity can take place.   
 

3.11 Sport England recommends that all Local Authorities produce a Built Facilities Plan 

which is a technical document that enables us to take an asset based approach. A Built 

Facilities Plan on a Page which highlights the key issues can be found in Appendix two.  

The more detailed summary document can be found at the following Built Facilities Plan 

Page 47

http://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=11686&p=0
http://www.wolverhampton.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=11687&p=0


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

This, in conjunction with the published Playing Pitch Strategy and Open Space Strategy 

and Action Plan will inform the framework for future investment that will assist us in 

achieving our ambition of everybody active every day. 

 

3.12 Building upon the success of volunteer led programmes such as Walking for Health and 

Park run 

 

4.0 Financial implications 

 

4.1 There are no direct or immediate financial implications for the Council arising from 

adoption of the framework.  However, it is envisaged that there will be financial benefits 

arising from the adoption of this framework in the form of capital and revenue funding 

programmes for the city, social value and future savings that can be made from reduced 

demand on health and social care services. 

 

4.2 Whilst there will be cost implications identified when the action plan is developed, 

delivery of these actions will be the responsibility of the partners attending the board 

alongside the Council.  Any projects that fall under the Council responsibilities will follow 

the appropriate governance procedures for approval. [GS/07042017/H] 

 

5.0 Legal implications 

 

5.1 There are no immediate legal implications from this report. [06042017/V] 

 

6.0 Equalities implications 

 

6.1 The consultation undertaken with strategic partners was integral to the development of 

this framework.  

 

6.2 The framework recognises that one of the City’s strengths is its diversity and to ensure 

that there is equality and fairness for all. In this regard, the Active City Board will be 
challenged to adopt an inclusive and locality driven approach when formulating the action 
plan. 

 

7.0 Environmental implications 

 

7.1 There are no immediate environmental implications. 

 

8.1 There are no human resources implications.  

 

9.0 Corporate landlord implications 

 

9.1 There are no immediate corporate landlord implications.  

 

10.0 Schedule of background papers 

 

10.1 Playing Pitch Strategy and Assessment Report – Cabinet Meeting, 13 January 2016  

Page 48

https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MID=4795#AI13736


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 

10.2 City of Wolverhampton Open Space Strategy and Action Plan – Cabinet Meeting, 24 

February 2016 

 

10.3 Towards an Active City – a physical activity framework - Cabinet Meeting, 18 January 

2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49

https://wolverhamptonintranet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MID=4797#AI14508


This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

People 
• Reduced levels of obesity and 

inactivity 

• Improved levels of mental 
wellbeing and a reduction in 
social isolation 

• Grow school sport and PE to 
build lifelong activity habits 

• Develop the skills of the 
workforce, both paid and 
voluntary 

 

Evidence 
• 35.2% of the city’s population are inactive 
• Only 49.9% achieve recommended 150 minutes’ activity per week 
• 14.9% do some activity but do not achieve 150mins per week therefore, 64.8% of residents are undertaking a 

minimum of 1 x 30 minutes’ activity per week 
• Physical inactivity is 4th biggest global killer (WHO) 

 

Towards an Active 
City 

Our Ambition is 
clear: we want 

every resident to 
be active 
everyday 

 

Principles and values 
Committed to: 
• Root physical activity into the city’s plans and priorities  

 
• Continually creating, learning, and improving 

opportunities to encourages everyone to be active 
every day  

 

Leadership 
• Independent Active City Board accountable to 

the Health & Wellbeing Board 
• Active City champions and ambassadors 
• Co-ownership – as shared city wide 

responsibility  
• Collating evidence and monitoring impact  

 

Appendix One 
 

Place 
• A better connected city which enables 

everyone to be active everyday 

• Increased community use of school sites 

• Identified investment priorities through 
alignment of Playing Pitch Strategy, Open 
Space Strategy and Action Plan and Built 
Facilities Plan to secure future funding 

• A wider leisure, play and recreation offer 
that provides attraction for residents and 
visitors 

 

Business 
• Increase profitability for 

businesses as a result of a 
healthier workforce 

• Digital technology will be 
used to maximise physical 
activity opportunities  

• Extended coverage of the 
workplace charter for 
Wolverhampton businesses  

 

What success looks like 
• By 2030, the proportion of Wolverhampton residents that are achieving at least 1 x 30 minutes of activity per week is equal to the 

national average (71.3%) 

Our Priority Outcomes  

P
age 50



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 

 

Swimming pools 
1. City’s pools are reasonably well located 
2. Impact of growth is not significant 
3. Closure of school pools albeit in the short term 

is putting pressure on full stock 
4. Present stock should be maintained and 

retained 
5. Invest to increase capacity at WV Active 

Central 
6. Review pool programming 
7. Scope joint venture with Black Country 

neighbours if capacity can’t be increased 
 

Studios 
• Ranked as important facility type, particularly for 

women 
• Represents an activity that can address balance 

between male and female participation 
• Facility provision and location is good 

 

Bowls 
• Important facility type for city 

demographic 
• Increasingly seen as activity for health 

intervention 
• Work with facilities to provide short and 

long mat bowls 
 Health and Fitness 

1. Ranked high is facility type to increase 
participation 

2. Range of modern and large scale good quality 
facilities 

3. No need to increase provision 
4. Interventions and action is more people than 

facility based 

Sports Halls 
5. Total supply meets demand and no further provision is 

needed 
6. Nearly 88% of sports halls are owned or managed by 

educational institutions 
7. Community centres provide critical local flexible indoor 

opportunities 
8. Review halls programming 
9. Protect and modernise existing stock 
10. WV Active to consider off peak activities that meet 

Towards an Active City priorities 
11. Support improved community use of school sites 

Indoor Tennis 
• Well accommodated at Wolverhampton 

Lawn Tennis and Squash Club but casual 
participants must be considered 

 

Outcomes 
• By 2030 the % of Wolverhampton that was physically inactive will have reduced to the national average 
• Suitable and sufficient facility provision in place to achieve our ambition of everybody active everyday 

 

Gymnastics 
(1) Absence of gymnastics provision for males 
(2) Consultation needed with Black Country 

Partners and British Gymnastics re 
feasibility study on provision of gymnastics 
centre 

 

Built Facilities Plan 
Our ambition is clear: 

we want every 
resident to be active 

everyday 
 

Principles and values 
Committed to: 
1. Developing sustainable participation in sport and physical 

activity 
2. Development of an audit and assessment of sports facilities 

to inform future investment 
3. Look further than high quality sports & leisure facilities as 

alone they will not address sedentary behaviour 
 

Governance 
The built facilities plan will be 

owned and maintained by the City 
of Wolverhampton Council and 

progress will be reported into the 
Active City Board 

 

Appendix two 

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

[Type text]

Health and Wellbeing 
Board
Minutes - 29 March 2017

Attendance

Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board

Councillor Roger Lawrence Leader of the Council (Chair)
Councillor Sandra Samuels 
OBE

Cabinet Member for Adults

Councillor Paul Sweet Cabinet Member for Public Health and Wellbeing
David Baker West Midlands Fire Service
David Watts Service Director -  Adults
Ros Jervis Service Director - Public Health and Wellbeing
David Loughton Royal Wolverhampton Hospital NHS Trust
Jeremy Vanes Royal Wolverhampton Hospital NHS Trust
Chief Supt Jayne Meir West Midlands Police
Bhawna Solanki University of Wolverhampton
Helen Child Third Sector Partnership
Linda Sanders Strategic Director - People
Steven Marshall Wolverhampton Clinical Commissioning Group
Alan Coe Wolverhampton Safeguarding Board
Dr Helen Hibbs Wolverhampton City Clinical Commissioning Group
Employees
Helen Tambini Democratic Services Officer

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

1 Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from the following members of the Board:
Alistair McIntyre – Locality Director – NHS England (West Midlands)  
Councillor Val Gibson – Cabinet Member for Children and Young People
Councillor Paul Singh – Shadow Cabinet Member for Public Health and Wellbeing
Dr Alexandra Hopkins – University of Wolverhampton
Tim Johnson – Strategic Director – Place 
Tracy Taylor – Black Country Partnership NHS Foundation Trust

2 Notification of substitute members
Bhawna Solanki attended on behalf of Dr Alexandra Hopkins.

3 Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

4 Minutes of the previous meeting - 15 February 2017

Page 53

Agenda Item No: 9



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

That, subject to the amendments referred to below, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 15 February 2017 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair:

 The inclusion of Bhawna Solanki in the list of apologies.
 The deletion of Chief Supt Jayne Meir from the list of attendees and her 

inclusion in the list of apologies.

5 Matters arising
The Chair thanked the Board for its comments on the Early Years Strategy and 
confirmed that it had been approved by the Cabinet.

Linda Sanders, Strategic Director – People, referred to the Better Care Fund and 
confirmed that the Council was still awaiting Government guidance and once that 
had been received the Board would be updated.

The Chair referred to the Forward Plan and noted that several reports had been 
deferred.  He referred to the need to ensure the effective management of the 
Forward Plan and noted that the issue would be discussed further under the Forward 
Plan item.    

6 Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) - Update and Local Health and 
Care System next steps
Dr Helen Hibbs, Chief Officer, Wolverhampton Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), 
David Loughton, Chief Executive, Royal Wolverhampton Hospital NHS Trust and 
Linda Sanders, Strategic Director – People presented the report.

The Strategic Director – People introduced the item and referred to the work already 
undertaken by the Transition Board and its evolvement into a Systems Development 
Board.  She referred to the anticipated announcement by the Head of NHS England, 
Simon Stevens on Friday, 31 March, outlining future proposals for the health service 
and the implications that might have for Wolverhampton and the wider Black 
Country.  She expected that there would be a renewed commitment to Sustainability 
and Transformation Plans (STPs), moving into a new phase with the appointment of 
a System Leader for the Black Country to drive change.  Work was already ongoing 
with the Chief Officer and Chief Executive to ensure that local residents continued to 
receive the best service possible.  It was vital that the service remained cohesive and 
resilient. 

The Chief Officer referred to the ongoing attempts to reorganise the NHS and the 
difficulties ahead.  Discussions locally had taken place looking at a place-based 
model of care to tie into the wider Black Country model.  Information relating to the 
new System Leader post continued to change and it was unclear if an incumbent 
would take the post.  A joint committee comprising the four Black Country CCGs had 
held its initial meeting and established several Task and Finish Panels.

The Chief Executive referred to the forthcoming great structural changes required to 
achieve the targeted reductions of £900 million.  During this period of considerable 
change there was a great opportunity for Wolverhampton to take the lead, with so 
many significant changes taking place just outside Wolverhampton. 

The Service Director – Public Health and Wellbeing referred to the uncertain future 
and the importance of regular dialogue as issues emerged to ensure that appropriate 
time was given to understand and support the development of the system for local 
people. Page 54



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Board was concerned about acute hospital bed provision in the region and 
sought assurance regarding its future.

Steven Marshall, Director of Strategy and Transformation, Wolverhampton Clinical 
Commissioning Group stated that although significant savings would have to be 
made and there was a great deal of speculation, there was no plan in place for 
hospital closures in the area. 

The Chief Officer confirmed that as part of the STP there would be increased 
community care and to allow that, resources would need to be released from acute 
hospital beds.  There would need to be economies, different working practices, and 
early intervention to allow that to happen.

Jeremy Vanes, Chair, Royal Wolverhampton Hospital NHS Trust stated that the 
Trust Board had spent time trying to prepare for future changes.  The emphasis 
would be on sustaining health improvements rather than structure and although any 
changes would be orchestrated nationally, it would have to be delivered locally. 

The Strategic Director – People referred to a press statement which had been 
drafted and asked the Board for guidance regarding a release date.

The Board acknowledged that until an announcement had been made, hopefully on 
Friday there would be many unanswered questions and until that announcement was 
made, it would be advisable to wait to make any announcements or release a press 
statement. 

Resolved: The Board noted the issues connected to the development of care and 
health systems in the City of Wolverhampton in the light of the update on the next 
steps for the Black Country Sustainability and Transformation Plan.

7 Health and Wellbeing Board - Forward Plan 2016/17
Ros Jervis, Service Director – Public Health and Wellbeing introduced the report.

The Service Director – Public Health and Wellbeing referred to the letter from the 
Chair circulated to all members of the Board regarding proposed changes to how 
agendas for future meetings were set to ensure a strong strategic focus was 
maintained.  It was proposed to establish an Agenda Group of core members which 
would meet a month before each meeting and members of the Board were 
encouraged to feed through any ideas which would be considered by that Group.  
Feedback to the proposals had been positive so far and any additional feedback was 
welcomed.

The Chair confirmed that there would be quarterly meetings and a development day 
in October.  The Agenda Group would allow more effective planning for future 
agendas.

The Board referred to the forthcoming announcement by Simon Stevens on future 
proposals for the health service and suggested that an update report to reflect any 
possible impact from that statement on the Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
(STP) should be submitted to the next meeting in June.

Page 55



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Alan Coe, Chair of the Wolverhampton Safeguarding Board referred to how the 
phasing of the Safeguarding Boards would fit into the Plan and the Board suggested 
that those timings should also be considered.

Resolved:
1. The Board approved the current Forward Plan.
2. The Board requested a report on the STP detailing any updates in response 

to the forthcoming announcement from the Head of NHS England to be 
submitted to the next meeting of the Board in June.

3. The Board consider the timings for the phasing of the Safeguarding Boards 
into the STP at an appropriate time.

8 NHS Capital Programme - Updates
A request had been received prior to the meeting for the report title to be changed to 
Estates Update and for the report to be deferred to the next meeting.

Resolved:
1. That the report title be changed to Estates Update.
2. That the item be deferred to the next meeting of the Board in June.

9 Evaluation Feedback on Living Well, Feeling Safe Event
Ros Jervis, Strategic Director – Public Health and Wellbeing and David Watts, 
Service Director – Adults presented the report.

The Service Director – Public Health and Wellbeing introduced the report and stated 
that the event had proved extremely successful in engaging with both partners, 
community groups and local residents and had been very well received, with 
considerable positive feedback.  Suggestions had also been received for any future 
events and it was important not to lose momentum and to consider the way forward.

The Service Director – Adults referred to the importance of engaging at a local level 
and working with local communities.  The event had also highlighted local knowledge 
which had added valve to the event.  In future events could be themed to target 
problems highlighted in specific areas.

The Board referred to large community events held annually in various locations, 
including Durham but considered that, smaller, more frequent, localised events were 
more beneficial as local communities and neighbourhoods could relate to them more.  
It was also important that the impetus between events was not lost, which could 
happen when annual events were held.

Alan Coe, Chair of Wolverhampton Safeguarding Board stated that it was important 
to help the socially isolated who were prone to vulnerability and it would be helpful to 
identify what local people found helpful when such events were held and any input 
from Stephen Dodd from the Wolverhampton Voluntary Sector Council would be 
advantageous.

Chief Supt Jayne Meir, West Midlands Police referred to the Active Citizens Funding 
of £80,000 to be awarded to community groups towards crime prevention and 
resilience and it was hoped in the future to become increasingly involved in 
community activities.

Page 56



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Service Director – Public Health and Wellbeing confirmed that the Steering 
Group was Chaired by Stephen Dodd and a representative from the Police would be 
invited to the next meeting on 12 April.  

In answer to a question regarding GP involvement, the Service Director – Public 
Health and Wellbeing confirmed that the Clinical Commissioning Group was well 
engaged and help would be given to improve engagement with GPs.

Resolved:
1. The Board noted the feedback from the Living Well, Feeling Safe Event.
2. The Board receive a range of options for further events at a future development 

session.

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Informal Joint Meeting with Royal Wolverhampton Hospital Trust – 13 February 
2017

Attendance 
Kath Perry Jasbir Jaspal
George Adamson Wendy Thompson
Charlotte Atkins Peter O’Neill
Michael Greatorex 
Philip Jones 
Ian Lawson
Stephen Sweeney
Shelagh McKiernan
Trish Rowlands
David Smith
Diane Todd
Conor Wileman
Ann Edgeller
Maureen Freeman
Barbara Hughes
Janet Johnson
Stephen Smith 
David Leytham

Apologies
Apologies were received from Councillors Craig Collingswood, Judith Rowley and 
Steve Simkins

Introduction
Cllr Kath Perry (Chairman – Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee) welcomed 
everyone to meeting. Cllr Perry explained that this was informal joint health scrutiny 
committee meeting with members of both City of Wolverhampton Council Health 
Scrutiny Panel and Staffordshire County Council Healthy Staffordshire Select 
Committee. 

Cllr Jaspal agreed to chair the meeting.

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest on this occasion 

Royal Wolverhampton NHS Trust Self-Assessment Report
The Chair welcomed David Loughton CBE, Chief Executive, The Royal 
Wolverhampton NHS Trust, to the meeting and invited him to present his report.  

David Loughton briefly outlined the health services delivered across 20 settings 
across Wolverhampton, Cannock and the surrounding area by The Royal 
Wolverhampton NHS Trust.  David Loughton commented on the tertiary services 
delivered to an estimated population of 1.9 million people covering a large 
geographical area.  He commented that health services are under great pressure 
due high demand but highlighted the important contribution of social services 
provision in supporting the discharge of patients and easing this pressure. David 

Page 59

Agenda Item No: 10



Loughton gave a recent example where the hospital had to deal with 20 ambulances 
arriving at the hospital when major beds were all occupied.  Comment was made 
that the current challenges facing hospitals were not just relating to previous six 
months but as a result of national political decisions not to invest sufficient funds in 
social services. 

The findings of CQC were highlighted which reported the hospital had achieved 85% 
A& E target – the performance target is 95% - which will be difficult to achieve. David 
Loughton reported that the hospital is doing well in terms of patient safety and 
tertiary services and that it is receives high levels of customer satisfaction. However, 
the hospital is experiencing difficulties getting the 200 extra nurses recruited from the 
Philippines to meet the required language standards so that they can work. The 
hospital is however still able to attract high calibre consultants. The challenge for the 
hospital is that it needs nursing staff with 5-6 years’ experience now, but the 
necessary work to train and recruit the workforce should have been done 12 years 
ago to replace staff leaving the health service.

David Loughton commented that the transfer of services from Mid Staffordshire 
Hospital in November 2014 had worked better than expected. However, there was 
concern about need highlighted in a report by Sir Bruce Keogh about the national 
shortage of consultants and the conclusion that there were too many A&E centres. A 
key recommendation in the report was that the number A&E centres should be 
reduced and concentrated into larger centres to achieve better patient outcomes and 
improve patient safety.

He commented that a full A&E service is not needed as 80 per cent of patients, who 
currently access the hospital, are dealt with within the four hour target, and are able 
to be discharged without the need to be admitted. David Loughton commented that 
people are happy to wait in an A&E to be seen within four hours rather than wait 72 
hours to see their own GP.

£35 million had been spent on improving services at Cannock Hospital which had 
benefited patients living in Stafford and Wolverhampton areas, for example, reduced 
waiting times for diagnostic treatments. David Loughton added that the rheumatology 
service at the hospital has a national reputation for quality.

Reference was made to proposals in the Sustainability Transformation Plans (STPs) 
about the future of Stafford Hospital and a commitment offered to maintain the 
existing provision. David Loughton commented on the important contribution of minor 
injuries provision at Cannock Hospital to the overall performance of the services 
offered by RWHT.

Thomas Sheeran, Rheumatology Consultant, briefed the committee on recent 
developments at the hospital and the appointment of four new consultants since the 
merger. Thomas Sheeran commented that the hospital was still able to attract high 
quality candidates. A recent peer review in December 2016 had been very positive 
about the quality of the service provided and inspectors who visited took away ideas 
about how it could be implemented elsewhere.

Page 60



David Loughton commented on the shortage of trained consultants who can 
undertake robotic surgery, particularly for treatment of urological conditions. David 
Loughton commented that as a result of this issue the waiting list for patients is 
growing, which is proving a challenge for the hospital. The number of cancelled 
operations is reducing, but is still a concern.

Questions from Health Scrutiny Members
The Scrutiny and Support Manager, explained that health questions were sent in 
advance to David Loughton to respond and Members were advised that there would 
be the opportunity to ask supplementary questions during the meeting.  The Chair 
invited members of the committee to present their questions. A summary of the 
responses to the questions is given below

In response to a question, David Loughton responded that there were no plans to 
change eye clinic provision at any of the current sites. He commented on the 
incompatibility of the two hospital computer systems and the problems caused. 
David Loughton offered reassurance to the committee that work is being done to 
improve the situation.

In relation to the impact on maternity services at RWHT as a result of changes 
introduced at County Hospital, Stafford. David Loughton commented on the 
increased pressure on the service – the number of births have increased up to a 
1000. 

The difficulties in sustaining 17 A&E departments with staff available support nine 
departments were highlighted. As a result the pressures on the service are 
increasing and it not attractive to young consultants to consider a career in this area 
due to high levels of stress.

Thomas Sheeran commented that the procedure for discharge involves checking 
that the patient is safe and they be referred to outpatient services when considering 
their circumstances. David Loughton added that patients may need to be referred 
back to the hospital for further tests.   He explained that the service receives 500-600 
complaints annually which is very small compared to the number of people who are 
seen at the hospital.

A Member praised the quality of services provided at Cannock Minor Injuries Unit 
(MIU) but expressed concern about the implications for the future of the service 
following the publication of the STP and the possibility of people having to travel 
further to receive treatment.  David Loughton gave a reassurance that despite the 
statement in the STP about changes to current provision there was a commitment 
that the MIU will remain open in the future.  He added that the MIU contributes two 
percent to the A&E performance target and the service will need to be sustaining 
considerable losses before the hospital would be considered for closure, despite the 
suggestion in the STP.

The Committee discussed nursing vacancies and the impact on the service. David 
Loughton commented that there are 200 vacancies for trained nurses across the 
hospital. The recruitment process has been delayed as only three of the 35 nurses 
meet the required standard of spoken English.  He explained that the vacancies 

Page 61



have filled using the nurse bank and the hospital has not had to use agency staff. 
The issue of filling nurse vacancies using nurses trained abroad is a national issue 
and commented that UK  requires higher standard of English than that required to be 
able to work as a nurse in the US or Canada.

David Loughton commented that changes in the bursary paid to healthcare 
assistants has discouraged people from considering taking up nursing, which had 
added to the shortfall problem. The changes were introduced by Government to 
reduce staff costs by £800 million.

The Committee requested details of the survival rates for patients that have been 
discharged

David Loughton responded to the query about performance of Wolverhampton and 
South Staffordshire where patients ready for discharges have not been able to leave 
as care arrangements are not in place.  He commented that his view Wolverhampton 
was more efficient in putting together care packages than, but accepted that the 
Council was trying to improve the service and also recognition of the different levels 
of funding available.

David Loughton commented that the need for further investment into social care 
budget has been raised in discussions with the Secretary of State.

A Member thanked Thomas Sheeran for the quality of service provided by the 
rheumatology unit but queried difficulties with the appointment booking system.  
They explained that in their experience, that when a patient is sent two appointment 
letters it is not clear what the nature of the appointment so that they book the 
necessary time – for example, dialysis treatment would normally require a whole day 
in hospital. Thomas Sheeran agreed to investigate the matter and report back the 
findings.

Thomas Sheeran advised the committee of the current appointment process and the 
investment in new systems, for example, text reminder service. The committee was 
advised that the service does not have mobile numbers for all patients which limits 
the effectiveness of the scheme.  He added that the issues of the patient 
appointments was highlighted as a problem during early stages of the hospital 
merger discussions and there plans to further streamline the service intended to 
reduce the number of visits, where possible.

David Loughton added that he was surprised that issues with outpatient booking 
system had not been raised previously.  RWHT hospital is rated as being in the top 
five for the quality of its clinical engagement work and Cannock Hospital is rated as 
100% in friends and family test every week by patients, which is an indication of the 
high standard care provided by staff every week.

The Chair queried the adequacy of the provision of secure mental health beds and 
the impact on bed space at RWHT where a person needs a secure place. David 
Loughton commented on poor level of provision and gave an example of patient 
waiting 37 hours to wait for secure mental health bed. He further commented that the 
percentage of patients with an underlying mental health condition. David Loughton 

Page 62



advised the committee that Black Country Partnership NHS Foundation Trust is 
responsible for the delivery mental health services.

A Member welcomed the comments from David Loughton about the resistance to 
proposals affecting Cannock Hospital and invited further comment. David Loughton 
gave a brief history in the changes in the health service provision and the anticipated 
budget shortfall predicted by 2020.  He commented that the expected savings were 
based on reducing demand for acute services as a result in investment in 
preventative treatment and improved population. However, he added that the 
evidence shows increases in the level of children assessed as being obese in 
Wolverhampton is increasing.  In conclusion, it was considered that the plans in the 
STP will not deliver the £200 million as the expected savings will not be achieved 
because of increased demand on the health service. David Loughton commented on 
the health model developed in Germany which is based on delivery services as part 
of one organisation, rather than UK model which involves different health bodies and 
argued that there too many organisation to agree on key health planning decisions.

A Member commented on the proposal in the STP about the future of A&E in Burton 
and expressed concern about the plan and other changes to the current provision of 
hospitals. David Loughton commented that there has been a failure by decision 
makers to close smaller units which are no longer sustainable – a population size of 
500,000 is needed to deliver safe services.  He added his view that Burton Hospital 
should be merged with Derby Hospital as it is not clinically sustainable, but accepted 
that it does take time to achieve the change.

A Member expressed concerns about the issue of delayed hospital discharge and 
social care packages provision and commented that frail elderly people were likely to 
present the greatest difficulties to service providers in meeting their needs and the 
need for a proper assessment.

The current provision of step-down beds was queried and comment made on the 
impact on the number of delayed discharges. David Loughton commented that the 
hospital does use step-down bed for patients needing to be assessed before they 
are discharged.  He added that the hospital would work with others to put together a 
suitable care package so that a patient is able to either return home or moved to an 
alternative care setting.

The committee discussed the type of hospital complaints received. David Loughton 
commented on the change in nature of complaints over the years – 80% of 
complaints received were about catering and parking – very few complaints about 
the quality of clinical care. David Loughton commented on process for patients to 
reports concerns or complaints about the service.

Concern was expressed in relation to WMAS outpatient appointment systems and 
the need to improve the logistics to ensure people do not arrive or miss their 
appointment. David Loughton responded that he was not aware of any difficulties 
with the non-emergency ambulance services. He further commented that the service 
is working well for renal patients who need visit the hospital three times a week. He 
added that he not received a single complaint about the ambulance service or the 
alternative taxi service.

Page 63



A Member invited David Loughton about proposed in integration of Staffordshire 
Hospital detailed in the STP would work better with RWHT rather than Royal Stoke 
University Hospital. David Loughton commented that there was a general view that 
this was the right direction for the service.

Concerns were expressed about arrangements for the discharge of patients back 
into the community from Staffordshire Hospital.  David Loughton commented that 
80% of the difficulties in delivering a safe service are concerned with services at 
Staffordshire Hospital.  He commented on the different experiences when dealing 
with social services who are part of the area, when compared to unitary authorities 
when managing the discharge of patients.

A Member commented on the current number of CCG’s operating in the region and 
queried if six was too many. David Loughton commented that he considered that the 
existing four CCG’s should be reduced to one as there was there was a lack of 
proper accountability in the current structure and concluded that it is a flawed 
arrangement with too many bodies involved in making decisions.

The implications of closing or moving services from Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital 
NHS Trust for services delivered by RWHT were raised .  David Loughton 
commented on the impact on the hospital of the decision to close the A&E 
Department and expressed concern that he was not made aware of the decision until 
ambulances were arrived at the hospital.  He commented that the hospital needs six 
weeks’ notice of changes so that the necessary contingency plans can be made as it 
operating at capacity.

The Chair thanked David Loughton and Thomas Sheeran for their contributions to 
the discussion. Cllr Kath Parry commented that as this was the first joint health 
scrutiny meeting there will be future discussions about the next agenda. 

Page 64


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting (2 March 2017)
	5 Oral Health of Children in Wolverhampton
	7 Access to GP Surgeries
	8 Towards an Active City – a physical activity framework
	9 Health and Wellbeing Board - Draft Minutes (29.3.17)
	10 Informal Joint Meeting with Staffordshire County Council  and City of Wolverhampton Council and Royal Wolverhampton NHS Hospital Trust - 13 February 2017

